[bookmark: _GoBack]          Program Committee Meeting[image: ]
June 4, 2020
Doug Dobmeyer, Committee Chair



Table of Contents
	Meeting Agenda.........................................................................3

	March 26th Minutes (Attachment A) .....................................4-7

	Advocacy Memo (Attachment B).........................................8-10

	Civil Rights Memo (Attachment C) ...................................11-14

	FY 21 Key Results Areas (KRAs) (Attachments D-S).....15-149





Access Living Program CommitteeA

Meeting Agenda

Zoom Meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81219437522		Meeting ID: 812 1943 7522
Phone:  +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)		Meeting ID: 812 1943 7522



1. 4:00 PM- Call to Order (Chair Dobmeyer)
2. 4:01 PM- Roll Call and Introductions (Chair Dobmeyer)
3. 4:02 PM- Welcome (Chair Dobmeyer)
4. 4:03 PM- Approval of Minutes from Last Meeting (Chair Dobmeyer)
5. 4:05 PM: Independent Living Department (Feidt)
a. KRA - Independent Living
b. Discussion - Once the shelter in place order is lifted, several Access Living staff members will still be operating in the field, visiting nursing homes and consumer homes, etc. Does the Committee have any ideas for presenters, speakers, or other resources that would be helpful for educating staff on how to stay safe when they are in the field?
6. 4:30 PM: Advocacy Department Updates (Smock)
a. KRA - Advocacy
b. Update on Hospital Nondiscrimination Advocacy
c. Update on Transportation Advocacy for Re-Opening
d. Update on Overall State and City Recommendations for Re-Opening and Recovery
e. Discussion - From your point of view/experience, what do you see as the top problems or barriers for people with disabilities during Covid-19 relief, re-opening and recovery? This will help us fine tune our asks at the federal, state and local levels.
7. 4:55 PM: Civil Rights Department Updates (Walden)
a. KRA - Civil Rights
b. Uber Case update
c. New Case - UI Health
d. New Case - Haymarket
8. 5:30 PM-Closing/Adjournment (Chair Dobmeyer)



B

Program Committee Meeting Minutes
March 26, 2020

On Phone: Doug Dobmeyer, Larry Goodman, ShaRhonda Knott Dawson, Tuyet Le, Francine Bell, Shari Runner, Andres Gallegos, Judith Aiello, Neil Hartigan, Joyce Lane, Molly Walsh

Staff: Amber Smock, Daisy Feidt, Ken Walden, Karen Tamley, Jerome Palliser

Zoom Meeting: https://zoom.us/j/677445133   Meeting ID: 677 445 133
Phone call: +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)   Meeting ID: 677 445 133


1. 4:00 PM- Call to Order (Chair Dobmeyer)
2. 4:01 PM- Roll Call and Introductions (Chair Dobmeyer)
3. 4:03 PM- Welcome (Chair Dobmeyer)
4. 4:03 PM- Approval of Minutes from Last Meeting (Chair Dobmeyer)
a. Larry Goodman moved
b. Judith Aiello seconded 
c. Minutes approved unanimously
5. 4:05 PM - COVID-19 Update (Tamley)
a. Access Living staff have been working from home, and working to respond to the virus itself. We were able to secure $25,000 to disseminate to consumers from the Chicago Coronavirus Relief Fund.
b. Daisy is in communication with DHS Secretary Grace Hou regarding programs/contracts, the Civil Rights team is still doing intakes, and Advocacy is transitioning grassroots and policy meetings from in person to digital.
c. Access Living is in the process of writing a letter to Governor Pritzker regarding rationing and its effect on people with disabilities. 
6. 4:23 PM: Independent Living Department (Feidt)
a. Independent Living is working with DRS to start an emergency PA program to aid people with disabilities who are sheltered in place but no longer have access to their personal care attendants due to the COVID-19 crisis.
b. Discussion – For our nursing home transition work, we need to hire outreach workers and so far, our job postings are not generating the type of candidates we need. Do you have thoughts on strategies we should employ to improve our recruitment efforts?
· Larry Goodman said he would follow up directly with suggestions.
· Doug Dobmeyer suggests circulating the post through partner/ally organizations.
· ShaRhonda Knott Dawson suggests AmeriCorps.
· Tuyet Le mentioned the Peace Corps, whose  volunteers have recently been recalled from overseas due to coronavirus precautions.
7. 4:33 PM: Advocacy Department Updates (Smock)
a. Disability and Incarceration Initiative update (MacArthur grant)
· Janet Horne will be our new staff person. She has been a practicing attorney and done criminal defense work with people with disabilities in jails. She is moving from Pennsylvania. She also previously worked with Disability Rights New York.
· Candace Coleman, Racial Justice Organizer has been working with MacArthur community partners and being on calls. However we need  the policy capacity to better engage with grant goals and COVID-19, so Janet will be very welcome.
· MacArthur Foundation has been very supportive offering support to grantees given the COVID-19 crisis.
· ShaRhonda noted that Mayor Lightfoot has booked 1,000 hotel rooms, but the homeless population doesn’t necessarily know how to access them. Hotels are a good option for housing people with disabilities, but the accessibility portion is currently unknown. She would like to get a plan in writing from Lightfoot administration regarding emergency housing for people with disabilities. (Knott Dawson)
· CHA has 2,000 units that are vacant right now, and a number of groups are trying to figure out a strategy to convince the CHA to open up those units for the homeless population as a public health strategy. Whether we will be able to convince them is unclear. (Walden)
b. Legislative Advocacy update
· Everything that is COVID-19 related is the priority, but legislative leaders are creating two main lists of bills for action. One is a short list of essential bills (budget, hospital assessment, etc). The CESSA Act, and Legislative Accessibility Act is not a priority for them right now, so our lobbyist suggests not pushing for them right now.
· The General Assembly is delayed for at least a few more weeks. The Governor’s staffers are working very long days and we are trying to work with them when we can.
c. Federal Advocacy update
· Access Living has been calling the disability community to action regarding federal stimulus dollars: Over 5,000 emails were sent to Congress. Senator Duckworth received over 800 emails wanting to know what they are doing to support us.
· Third stimulus package does not provide a lot for home and community based services funding. Additionally, there is confusion on how the stimulus checks will affect people with SSI. 
· As of now, the bill says you need a valid ID number. That requires a social security number, not Individual Taxpayer Identification Number (ITIN). This is problematic for immigrants with disabilities who pay taxes via an ITIN but do not have a VIN.
d. Discussion – What suggestions do you have regarding AL policy or organizing advocacy on COVID-19? What opportunities are you aware of? 
· Create some sort of triage for Access Living stories for Bridget. Some place or number where people can call in and let us know what issues they are facing. (Knott Dawson)
· StoryCorps has used Google Voice in the past - they open a line and provide a phone number and people can leave a 2.5 minute message. That may be worth exploring. (Le)
· If employers are ignoring safety violations and willing to take fines rather than protecting their workers, we should be paying attention. Often we feel our issues are at the bottom, but in this crisis reasonable accommodations may be challenged as small businesses rebuilt after this. (Le)
8. 4:55 PM: Civil Rights Department Updates (Walden)
a. Homeless Shelters Update
· We filed a new lawsuit against the city due to the lack of access for folks with disabilities to homeless shelters. The plaintiff is a person with a disability who was unable to access the city homeless shelters. In an earlier case, we received a ruling that the system is inaccessible, but because the person is now housed, she did not have standing to force the city to fix the entire system. Her case is settling, and we found another woman and filed the new lawsuit along with our partners Chicago Coalition for the Homeless, and Porter Wright. (Walden)
· Access Living and/or other groups could try to meet with developers of low income housing to work together in the creation of affordable and accessible housing.. (Dobmeyer)
b. [bookmark: _gjdgxs]Discussion – Typically, our Civil Rights Team receives complaints about housing discrimination that are active, and we endeavor to address the discrimination to enable consumers to secure or maintain housing. Occasionally, we receive complaints of past discrimination, where the primary relief sought by a consumer is damages. We tend to resist handling such cases in order to preserve our resources for cases where the discrimination is active. We recently agreed to file a lawsuit in federal court on a case that we got involved in when the housing discrimination was clear and active, but the couple has since moved, so the underlying problem is no longer a live problem,. Hence, the focal purpose of the filing is to win damages for the couple (and teach the housing provider a lesson and perhaps generate media coverage to broaden that lesson). Details of the case will be provided during the meeting, but our team would like the Committee to brainstorm about the efficacy of handling such cases.
· [bookmark: _gr0441n11ltm]I know of a situation where a person was in need of a support animal and her landlord is telling her she needs to pay an extra $150 per month. I think we should be taking on cases because we want to change the mindset of the public, and not necessarily to get damages. (Bell) 
· [bookmark: _k0vbzf9pzw4x]Is there a volume issue? Is there a pipeline issue for people to contact you while discrimination is going on? (Le) 
· [bookmark: _r9nuuwiox4hi]Occasionally we receive a call about discrimination that occurred long ago, but this is rare.. We get referrals from legal, housing, and community organizations, as well as public officials. We operate intake every day. In terms of our workload we usually have around 35 active cases. (Walden)
· [bookmark: _lbzi3pxqh2iz]Committee generally endorsed continuing the practice of focusing our resources on equitable and immediate relief in “live”cases rather than on the imposition and collection of damages related to discriminatory acts that occurred in the past.  

9. 5:25 PM-Closing/Adjournment (Chair Dobmeyer)




To: Access Living Program CommitteeC

From: Amber Smock, Director of Advocacy
Re: Advocacy Update 
Date: May 27, 2020


The following updates are intended to be brief, particularly as each area is continually evolving. This is not a comprehensive review of all our current advocacy, but highlights which we felt should be on your radar at this time.

Update on State Legislative Session

The beginning of this week saw our state legislature wrap up a compressed four-day session focused on the budget, Covid-19 relief, and the hospital assessment.

The upshot of the budget process is that legislators passed a budget aimed at preserving the social safety net and dealing with Covid-19 relief and recovery. Legislators were not able to operate with up-to-date fiscal projections; indeed the most recent numbers they had were from early April. The strategy was to appropriate where it seemed necessary, and as the fiscal year begins on July 1, the Governor will have some discretion to spend (or save) where necessary. There were a great many unknowns about what our economy will look like, and exactly how much federal relief we can expect. However the human services focus is actually a good thing for many people with disabilities.

Key items on the budget as passed (awaiting signature by the Governor):

· Centers for Independent Living will see a small statewide increase of about $300,000 for their compile state funding line. This is less than we originally hoped for pre-pandemic, but we’re glad to see there won’t be cuts.
· A $66 million increase to support 700 new placements for people with intellectual/developmental disabilities (I/DD) to move into the community under the Ligas consent decree, which will help with pressures related to low pay for support workers for people with I/DD. Direct Support Professionals will see a wage increase of $1 an hour starting July 1, 2020, and an additional $0.50 per hour starting January 2021.
· A major hospital assessment bill passed, ensuring funding for many health systems across the state.
· There is $900 million for the Illinois Department of Public Health to respond to COVID-19 with testing and contact tracing programs.
· The budget appropriates $500 million for rent assistance, mortgage relief, utility assistance, and homelessness prevention. There is also a property tax relief package that suspends some late payments and allows some tax exemptions for seniors, veterans, and people living with disabilities to automatically renew.
· An education omnibus bill passed. This includes Access Living's legislative piece about requiring that parents/guardians receive draft Individual Education Plans (IEPs) three days in advance of an IEP meeting, as well as mandatory service logs. This is a big win for our Education Policy Analyst, Chris Yun. The bill related to the use of seclusion in Illinois schools was not included, pending more work.
· An election omnibus bill passed, allowing vote-by-mail applications to be sent to every Illinois home. However, disability advocates will keep an eye on new election processes because of concerns about digital access issues (the lead for this is Equip for Equality).
· A bill expanding Telehealth was passed.
· The budget includes funds to cover the wage increase now in place for Home Services Program Individual Providers, per collective bargaining agreement.
· There is $58 million in new funding for in-home healthcare for older adults, fully funded domestic violence shelters, and increased funds for mental health resources.
· The Healthy Illinois Coalition announced that the state budget includes funds for coverage for healthcare for undocumented seniors ages 65 and up, the very first state in the country to make this achievement.

At this point, Access Living needs to intensify its efforts to guide the State of Illinois to use its relief and recovery efforts to shape a more sustainable way of life for Illinoisans with disabilities. The rate of deaths in congregate settings, in particular, is a call to re-examine why we use them and whether more community-integrated options can be a better choice for pandemic and disaster situations.

Update on Hospital Nondiscrimination Advocacy

Access Living has an internal cross-departmental team that continues to work on this topic. Karen Tamley is the lead liaison with the Illinois Department of Human Rights (IDHR), which is the administrative lead on this issue. On May 15, the Director of the Illinois Department of Public Health issued additional guidance on nondiscrimination to clarify that persons with intellectual/developmental disabilities (I/DD) can have a support person accompany them at the hospital, in response to a great deal of pressure from the I/DD sector. However, the original guidance stated that ALL persons with disabilities were allowed to have a support person for disability access. We last met with IDHR the week of May 18 and relayed updates on situations where we have learned the guidance has not been followed. We continue to ask for an enforceable protocol, but we are also talking with them about how to educate both medical providers and the general public about this guidance.

Update on Transportation Advocacy for Re-Opening

Access Living has a slightly similar team effort occurring in communicating with the State and local partners like the RTA regarding disability access in the slowly re opening transit systems. Mainline and paratransit riders with disabilities, including Access Living staff, are greatly concerned about driver and rider safety on mainline transit and paratransit, and rightly so. This is possibly one of the biggest challenges to our office fully re-opening. However, reduced extended or permanent use of mainline transit could threaten the existence of paratransit services, which are mandated to exist within a certain distance of mainline routes. If mainline routes disappear, so does the paratransit in that area.

Karen is, again, leading high level discussions with the State and the RTA about safety on paratransit, and longer term transportation options for people with disabilities during the pandemic.

Update on Overall State and City Recommendations for Re-Opening and Recovery

Internally, we have also been conducting a cross-departmental discussion to create memos for the Governor and Mayor regarding disability concerns for state and local re-opening. Each week brings new challenges, but we have collected a number of ideas looking across the portfolio of areas where we have unique knowledge. Some are based on old advocacy, such as access to housing, but some items are new, such as coordination between emergency management, public health, and human services. These memos are currently still being drafted, with the re-opening one carrying the more pressing priority. When the memos are completed, they will be sent by Karen.


D


CONFIDENTIAL AND PRIVILEGED:  DO NOT DISTRIBUTE

MEMORANDUM

TO:		Program Committee

FROM:	Charles Petrof, Mary Rosenberg, and Ken Walden

RE:	Update on Uber case, City of Chicago case (Affordable Rental Housing Program) case, City of Chicago case (Emergency Shelters), CPS case, Historic Home/Historic Neighborhood case, NEW Case - UI Health, New Case - Haymarket sober home

DATE:	May 27, 2020

_____________________________________________________________________________

Uber – Federal Court Case

UPDATES IN BOLD

On May 5, 2020, the 7th Circuit denied our appeal. While we are encouraged that the 7th Circuit left intact the district court’s ruling that Uber is governed by the ADA, we believes the Court’s decision is wrong in most other respects. Most critically, this decision severely limits disability advocacy organizations, especially Centers for Independent Living (CILs), from defending their rights under Title III. While CILs are required by federal law to hire a large percentage of employees with disabilities, this decision does not allow CILs to confront discrimination against those employees even when that discrimination interferes with the CIL’s business. This is neither legally nor practically appropriate.

We are unaware of any other area of law that limits an organization, non-profit or for profit, in this way. It is generally recognized that an organization can only act through its employees. We are certain that the legislature never intended that organizations like CILs should be excluded in this way from protecting the rights of people with disabilities to access public accommodations. It is also certain that the legislature never intended CILs to be denied the right to protect their own activities from disability discrimination. No other civil right has been similarly burdened.
v
Although the 7th Circuit correctly held that an individual plaintiff has a right to enforce the ADA even though her need for using a mobility device is intermittent, the rest of the Court’s decision about the standard for an individual to seek injunctive relief is problematic. Uber told Access Living leadership and staff that it would not comply with the ADA. The individual plaintiff, a member of Access Living’s leadership, knew of Uber’s refusal and still wanted to use the service because she had no comparable transportation option for activities, both professional and personal, she regularly undertakes. She had viewed Uber’s app and learned that there was no service at her home. In that situation, the injury is obvious. The Court’s decision that this individual plaintiff needs to suffer more discrimination before she can complain of her injury sets a standard that is out of touch with current business practices and contrary to the remedial purposes of the ADA.

City of Chicago (Affordable Rental Housing Program) – Federal Court Case

NO SIGNIFICANT UPDATES SINCE LAST PROGRAM COMMITTEE MEETING

As reported previously, the parties have moved into the discovery phase of litigation, which is the sharing of information with each side via formal written requests for information and interviews with potential witnesses. 

District Court Judge Dow referred the parties to Magistrate Judge Cole for help resolving discovery disputes. We have been before Judge Cole a handful of times, but we became concerned that he was defining the scope of discovery in a manner inconsistent with Judge Dow’s directives. Accordingly, we filed with Judge Dow a motion to define the scope of discovery to help get everyone on the same page about the scope. The motion will be considered and a hearing set after Judge Dow reviews the papers filed on this issue.   

City of Chicago (Housing Shelters) – Federal Court Case

UPDATES IN BOLD

Martin case: We settled our lawsuit that alleged plaintiff Laura Martin was denied access to City of Chicago homeless shelters because the shelters are inaccessible, in violation of Title II of the ADA. The settlement provides monetary damages to Ms. Martin and reserved for later the question of the appropriate amount of attorneys’ fees for plaintiff’s lawyers. Since our last report, led by the law firm Porter Wright, which has worked on this case pro bono, we have been negotiating the amount of attorneys’ fees with the City. We attended a settlement conference over the fee issue, but negotiations remain ongoing.

Carter case: On February 13, because the case on behalf of Ms. Martin settled without an order requiring the City to address the accessibility of its shelters, we – along with our partners at Coalition for the Homeless and the law firm Porter Wright - filed a new lawsuit in federal court on behalf of a new plaintiff, the goal of which is to force the City to make its shelter system accessible. The case is captioned Gloria Carter vs. City of Chicago. The City received service in the suit, and filed its appearance on May 7, 2020.



Chicago Public Schools – Federal Court Case

NO SIGNIFICANT UPDATES SINCE LAST PROGRAM COMMITTEE MEETING

We represent a CPS primary school student and her mother in their demand for installation of an elevator in the student’s school, which the student needs in order to make the school accessible to her. 

On December 17, 2019, we completed briefing on our motion for summary judgment. Our motion argues that CPS violated the ADA in two separate ways. First, we argue the CPS school selection process discriminates against students with disabilities because only half of the schools available through that process are physically accessible, giving students with disabilities half the choices enjoyed by students without disabilities. Second, we argue CPS should be required to accommodate our client’s disability because installing an elevator at one of its schools would not fundamentally alter CPS’s activities. In furtherance of this second argument, we stress that for a district the size of CPS, the cost of an elevator is dwarfed by its general activities, even in years of great financial hardship.

Also on December 17, 2019, CPS completed briefing its own motion for summary judgment. The CPS motion argues CPS’s offer to transfer our client to a different school that operates in an accessible building is all that is required for compliance with Section 504 or the ADA. CPS further argues that transfer to an accessible building has been ruled to be a sufficient remedy under the Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act (IDEA). 

The Judge in our case will now consider whether the ADA provides different protections than the IDEA in situations like ours. A decision is expected this summer. 

Historic Home/Historic Neighborhood case –Federal Court Case and State Court Case

UPDATES IN BOLD

Federal Court: In December, Access Living and the law firm Relman Colfax filed a fair housing complaint on behalf of a family that wants to modify an historic home in the historic neighborhood of Old Town to make it accessible for their 14-year-old daughter who uses a wheelchair. Namely, the family desires to create an accessible entrance, garage, and small living space in the rear of the building, install an elevator from there to upper floors, and make other accessibility improvements. Sadly, the family’s effort is opposed by a group of neighbors who comprise the Old Town Triangle Association (OTTA), who claim the modifications will compromise the historical nature of the neighborhood and home, even though a number of historical preservation organizations have approved the family’s plans for the home. The complaint alleges the OTTA’s actions violate the Fair Housing Act, including the provision that prohibits coercion, intimidation, threats, or interference against someone who exercises his/her housing rights. The OTTA filed an Answer (i.e. a formal response to the complaint).

State Court: You may recall we previously helped this same family win approval for its planned modifications from the Chicago Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA). Unfortunately, the OTTA appealed the ZBA’s decision to the Circuit Court (state court), and that case remains pending in that court. Access Living, as an organization, successfully intervened in the state court case to stress the fair housing implications of the case, and will urge the court to uphold the ZBA’s decision. This case remains pending in state court. Recently, the parties, including Access Living, filed briefs in the case, which the court will consider to determine whether to uphold or reverse the ZBA’s decision.

Accordingly, and in summary, we continue to advocate on the family’s behalf in the state court case, but also co-filed and are co-counseling the new case in federal court.

NEW CASE: UI Health – Federal Court Case

On February 14, 2020, with our pro bono partners Andres Gallegos and Jennifer Sender of Robbins, Salomon & Patt, we sued the Board of Trustees for the University of Illinois concerning two ADA/504 violations in their UI Health system.

Our plaintiff, staff member Dr. Angel Miles, had two separate medical tests scheduled at UI Health. Since Dr. Miles uses a wheelchair, she recognized the possibility that the testing facility may not be accessible, and therefore advocated for accommodations at the outset when she started to schedule the tests. Despite her advocacy, UI Health scheduled both tests in facilities that were inaccessible to wheelchair users. Dr. Miles also discovered that UI Health had no person or office with responsibility for coordinating accessible healthcare, in violation of the ADA.

UI Health accepted service in this case, and we offered an extension of time for UI Health to respond in light of the COVID-19 pandemic.

NEW CASE – Haymarket Sober Home Effort in Itasca – Local Administrative Case and
Possible Federal Court Case

We recently decided to represent Haymarket in its effort to operate a sober home for individuals 
[bookmark: _30j0zll]recovering from addition to drugs and/or alcohol. The Haymarket effort has faced stiff and vocal opposition from members of the Itasca community. Note that those in recovery are considered people with disabilities under the federal Fair Housing Act. 
With our law firm partner, Daspin & Aument, we will aim to get approval for the home from the Village of Itasca, through a series of hearing zoning/planning hearings and, if necessary and appropriate, we will file a proactive fair housing lawsuit against the Village.

1
image4.png




image2.png




image1.png




image1.jpg




image3.png




